ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON COW TTEE
May 2, 2002
3:08 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Kim El ton

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 523(TRA)
"An Act naming the state airport at the Gty of Unalaska the Tom
Madsen Airport."

MOVED CSHB 523(TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 348
"An Act relating to insurance for and work on certain notor
vehicle repairs; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 348( TRA) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

HB 523 - No previous action to record.

SB 348 — See Transportation mnutes dated 4/11/02.
W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Susan Wells

Staff to Representative Carl Mses

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the purpose of HB 523.

M. Frank Kelty

POB 162

Unal aska AK 99685

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported HB 523.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- May 2, 2002



M. Sinclair WIt

POB 502

Unal aska AK 99685

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 523.

Ms. Annette Deal

Staff to Senator John Cowdery

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the changes nmade in CSSB 347(TRA).

M. M chael Lessneier

State Farm | nsurance Conpany

3000 Vintage Blvd. No. 100

Juneau AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concern that certain provisions of
CSSB 347(TRA) would limt conpetition.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-22, SIDE A
Number 001
#HB523

HB 523- TOM MADSEN Al RPORT AT UNALASKA

CHAl RMVAN JOHN COANDERY cal l ed the Senate Transportation Conmttee
neeting to order at 3:08 p.m and announced HB 523 to be up for
consi derati on.

V5. SUSAN WELLS infornmed nmenbers that HB 523 has the full support
of the mayor of the City of Unal aska and surroundi ng comunities.
She noted that Tom Madsen was very highly thought of by everyone
on the entire Al eutian Chain.

MR. FRANK KELTY said he is the fornmer mayor of Dillingham and
that all the villagers believe it is an appropriate honor to nane
the airport after Tom Madsen.

MR. SINCLAIR WLT related that 15 years ago, when one of his
daughters was only 14 nonths old, she got into her nother's iron
tablets and had to get to a hospital within 18 hours or she could
die. Wnd and snow was blowing 50 -60 knots at the time. Tom
Madsen said he would try to get her to Cold Bay, which he did.
Fromthere she was shuttled to a hospital and survived.

SENATOR TAYLOR nopved HB 523 from committee wth individual
recommendati ons.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- May 2, 2002



SENATOR ELTON obj ected to say that he is one of the few people in
the state who never nmet Tom Madsen, but he wanted the comm ttee
to know that Stephanie Madsen was present. She had been a
gracious host to himin Dutch Harbor when he first net her and a
great public servant, serving on the North Pacific Fisheries
Managenment Council, the Rural Devel opnent Council, and the State
Chanber for the City of Cordova. He thanked her for attending.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if there were any objections to noving the
bill fromcommttee. There were no further objections and it was
so ordered.

#

#SB348
SB 348- MOTOR VEH CLE REPAI RS

CHAI RVAN CONDERY announced SB 348 to be up for consideration

SENATOR WARD noved to adopt the proposed committee substitute
(CS) to SB 348, Version C, as the working docunent before the
commttee. There were no objections and it was so ordered.

MS. ANNETTE DEAL, staff to Senator Cowdery, said that the CSis a
little different from the original bill. A nmmjor concern
expressed during the last commttee neeting was that the notor
vehicle repair facility had to actually supply a warranty. The CS
clarifies that the insurer has the responsibility to maintain the
warranty and not the notor vehicle repair facility. Another
concern was that insurance premum rates mght increase if this
type of |egislation was enacted but the opposite seens to be true
according to GAO reports. In alnost every state that has enacted
simlar legislation, prem uns have been reduced.

M5. DEAL pointed out that Alaska is one of ten states that
doesn't offer sonme form of protection that relates to an
i nsurance conpany’s ability to mandate use of aftermarket crash

parts. This bill also asks for consunmer consent prior to the
repair, which eight other states require. The second part of the
bill calls for disclosure if aftermarket cars are used, which 28

states require. Consuners should have the right to deci de whet her
aftermarket crash parts are used to repair their vehicles. They
are best protected when their repair options are fully discl osed
and they have the right to choose. Also, an insurer is protected
fromfuture | osses.

MR. M CHAEL LESSMEIER, State Farm I nsurance representative, said
that he just received a copy of the CS and that it contains

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- May 2, 2002



changes that are inportant in terns of inpact. He did not believe
any other nenbers of the industry had seen the new version. He
urged nenbers not to do anything that could handi cap conpetition
in the use of parts because conpetition is good for consunmers. He
explained that State Farm wites approximately 25% of the
i nsurance premuns for autonobiles in Al aska. State Farm Mitua
is owmed by its policyhol ders, so when State Farm Miutual believes
it is doing better, it actually gives noney back. It has returned
mllions of dollars to Alaskan policyholders. Utimtely, one of
the big driving costs of autonobile insurance is the cost of
repairing autonobiles, which has gone up significantly. To the
extent that the cost of collision repair and property damage is
hi gher, the insurance rates for those coverages are going to be
hi gher .

MR. LESSMEI ER noted conpetition with aftermarket parts serves two

functi ons. In many instances, aftermarket parts are the
equi val ent of the parts from the original equipnent manufacturer
(OEM but they are significantly cheaper. There is a secondary

effect; when there is conpetition it drives down the cost of CEM
parts as well. He comrented:

The first point that I would nmake to the conmttee is
pl ease do not do anything that would interfere wth
conpetition. Unfortunately this bill as it is witten

does do sonething to interfere with conpetition

The second point that | would like to make to the
commttee is that it is inaccurate to say that there is
no guarantee or no warranty that currently exists under
Alaska law. For many, many years, there have been
guarantees and those guarantees are a part of the
Unfair Clains Settlenent Practices Act that exists in
the regul ati ons that have been adopted by the Division
of Insurance. Essentially, what those regulations

provide for - and they occur in several different
places in the regulations in 3 AAC 26.080, which deals
with standards for pronpt, fair and equitable

settlenments of motor vehicle clains, subsection (f)
says that if a person adjusting or settling a claim
elects to have repaired a claimant's notor vehicle and
chooses a specific facility for the repairs, that
person shall guarantee the repairs and cause a damaged
notor vehicle to be restored to its condition before
the loss at no additional cost. So, we could argue
about whether that guarantee is identical with the
warranty that is set forth in your bill but, there is
at least to that extent, a guarantee that already

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- May 2, 2002



exists in terns of the admnistrative regul ati ons that
have been on the books for many years in Al aska.

The third thing that I would like the conmttee to be
aware of is at least the current practice of Al aska. If
you were to go to State Farnm s website, you would find
that there is a guarantee for parts. You would also
find this thing at the website and it says
"Conpetition has lead to dramatic reductions in the
costs of many  original equi pnent manuf act urers
repl acenent parts and has caused significant
i nprovenents in their warranties. This results in
hi gher quality at |ower cost for the consuner.' And we
think that is inportant. W certainly are willing to
stand behind the parts that we use. W’ve told people
that and we will do that in Alaska and | don't think
there has been a problemin Al aska, at |east State Farm
has not had a significant problemthat | know of.

MR. LESSMEI ER cautioned that no matter who the insurer is, to the
extent that costs of repairing vehicles rises, the consuner wll
pay through higher premuns. State Farm does not have any
difficulty with the disclosure provision or with the warranty
provision, although it is arguable as to whether it is broader
than the guarantee already provided in Alaska |law. He said sone
provisions of the bill are sinply unworkable as witten. For
exanple, the bill has an imedi ate effective date and requires
the insurer to provide witten notice of the warranty avail able
before issuing a renewi ng policy. Furthernore, Section 2, dealing
with consent, wll handicap conpetition. State Farm very rarely
uses after-market parts in this state, but if they are being
used, the consuner is being told and given a choice. There is a
difference in price. State Farmbelieves that is fair.

MR. LESSMEI ER said a second concern with Section 2 has to do with
the warranty |anguage. In his view it is not accurate. For
exanple, the second sentence (page 2, lines 17-19) says, “A
warranty applicable to these replacenent parts is provided by the
i nsurer rather than the manufacturer of your vehicle.” He stated:

The truth is that the warranty in each of these
i nstances would be provided not just by the insurer,
but by the manufacturer of the aftermarket part as

well. That's a subtle issue but to be accurate that
shoul d be included. The next sentence, though, is not
accur at e.

He said he | ooked at the federal Magnuson Moss Act and found that
Section 2302(c) says:

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- May 2, 2002



No warrantor of a consunmer product may condition his
witten or inplied warranty of such product on the
consuner's using it in connection with such product,
any article or service, which is identified by brand,
trade or corporate nane.

MR. LESSMEI ER said Section 2302(c) also says there are conditions
under which the Federal Trade Conmmission can weigh that. He
t hought the sentence in the CS, to the effect that the use of a
notor vehicle replacenent part not nmade by the original equipnent
manuf act ur er may i nval i date t he r emai ni ng war ranty as
contenplated in federal law, is contrary to federal law He
expl ai ned when you couple the consent with statenents |ike that,
that are at best msleading, you handicap fair conpetition and
that is State Farmis concern. He also noted that he didn't
understand the basis for subsection (d) on line 24.

CHAI RVAN COWNDERY asked if he was talking about third-party
cl ai nms.

MR. LESSMEI ER i ndi cated that he was.

CHAI RVAN COADERY commented that if a person was wal king down the
street wwth a Sony TV and fell and broke his arm the insurance
conpany woul d pay for the broken arm but it wouldn't pay for the
broken TV. He then said if, in the sanme situation the nman
carrying the TV was hit by a car, the nedical costs would be
covered and the TV would be repaired, and not with off brand
parts.

MR. LESSMEI ER responded that he didn't understand the provision
that deals with a third-party claimant. He said perhaps the
intent is to say sonmeone who is injured and whose vehicle is
damaged through the negligence of an insured should have their
vehi cl e shoul d repai red under the provisions of this bill

MR. LESSMEIER said he also questions the definition of an
aftermar ket crash part. He said all of the testinony he has heard
has focused on aftermarket crash parts, as opposed to what
industry calls the hard parts or nechanical parts, yet the bil
deals with all of the other parts. He said State Farm is not
aware of any problens with the hard parts and conceded that State
Farms warranty does cover hard parts. He added there is sone
anbiguity in the admnistrative regulation as to what is neant by
guarantee. He suggested that the | aw already contains protections
and that the bill as drafted is problematic. He repeated that it
will interfere with fair conpetition. He offered to work wth
commttee nenbers on the warranty issue and stand behind the
products that State Farm uses.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY contended the owner of the vehicle should have
SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- May 2, 2002



the right to determ ne which parts to use.

MR. LESSMEIER said the owner has that choice under existing
practice. The only difference is that the premumis not based on
that choice, it is based on sonething else. He repeated that
State Farm believes that is far better for conpetition as |ong as
there is fair disclosure. He then referred to the definition in
subsection (e) on line 27, and said the definition of an
aftermarket crash part does not require that the part be
manuf actured by the original equipnment manufacturer; it only has
to be supplied by the original equipnment manufacturer. He said
that could be read to mnean that the original equipnent
manuf acturer can outsource an aftermarket part, and as |long as
the original equipnent manufacturer supplies the part, it is not
considered to be an aftermarket crash part. He said in many
instances these parts are nmanufactured by the very sane
facilities. State Farm believes the Legislature can acconplish
what it wants to do by requiring disclosure and a warranty. State
Farm urges the committee to restrict the bill to those
requirenents if it intends to go forward with this |egislation

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked M. Lessneier if he was saying that car
manuf acturers shoul d manufacture all of their parts.

MR. LESSMEIER said he was not. He said this legislation wl
create a situation in which the original equipnent manufacturer
could obtain a part from the afternmarket nanufacturer and that
part would be treated differently just because the original
equi pnrent manuf acturer obtained it. He said that many peopl e have
commented on the Avery case but what he found interesting was
that no one has |ooked at the safety records of the autonobile
manuf acturers and resulting lawsuits. He noted there have been
far nmore lawsuits against autonobile nmanufacturers about
defective parts than against the aftermarket parts industry. He
submtted the issue of the use of aftermarket parts, at |east
Wi th respect to crash parts, is not an issue of safety. It is an
issue of fit, finish, and those sorts of concerns. He said State
Farm is wlling to stand behind the parts it uses. He again
cautioned that the ultimte losers in all of this to the extent
that fair conpetition is inhibited will be the consuners.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked how many Al askans were involved in the Avery
class action | awsuit.

MR. LESSMEIER said he did not know but the effect of that
decision is that State Farm has stopped using aftermarket parts
in Alaska. The cost of State Farmis collision coverage and
property damage coverage had been relatively stable in Al aska for
the two years preceding Avery. After that, those costs increased
significantly.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- May 2, 2002



SENATOR TAYLOR said his question was how nany Al askans were
included in the suit. He asked M. Lessneier to get that
information for the conmttee because nenbers are tal king about
Al askans and over 4 mllion people were involved in that class
action lawsuit. He then asked whether State Farm has changed the
wording of its policies since the Avery deci sion.

MR. LESSMEI ER said he did not know that answer to that and that
he does not claimto be an expert on the Avery lawsuit. He said
he does know that State Farm has stopped using the parts that
were identified in the Avery case. He does know what
representations State Farm makes to consuners in Al aska. He said
he believes there have been very few conplaints in Al aska about
the way State Farmrepairs vehicles.

SENATOR TAYLOR commrented that M. Lessneier has testified three
or four times that since the Avery decision, State Farm quit
using aftermarket parts for the nost part. He said that was not a
conpany choice; State Farmwas required to do that as a result of
the | awsuit.

MR. LESSMEIER said that 1is wuntrue. He said it is his
understanding that the Avery suit dealt with a finding of 25 or
26 different parts.

SENATOR TAYLOR said there were 25 parts at issue in the case. He
then asked M. Lessneier to elaborate on his conment about the
D vision of Insurance regul ati ons on deceptive practices.

MR. LESSMEIER said he was referring to the Al aska insurance
regul ations (3 AAC — Section 26). He believed the entire schene
of those reqgqulations was put in place around 1989. He said if
there has been a problem in this area, people could go to the
Di vi sion of |nsurance.

SENATOR TAYLOR said the unfair settlenent practice regulations
were on the books during the period of tinme that the conduct
occurred over which State Farmlitigated the Avery case.

MR. LESSMEI ER said those regulations were on the books but he
doesn’t think there was an issue as to whether the regul ations
were violated. He said it is inportant to understand that the
Avery case did not involve a single incident of an individual
comng forward and showng that an aftermarket part had been
provided to that insured that was defective. The case involved a
trial of expert w tnesses, as he understands it, who were trying
to show that a class of these parts were defective. He noted if
one wanted to | ook at whether a specific regulation was violated
because of no guarantee, he or she would have to look at the
specific fact situation. He suggested there is not a history of
that kind of activity in Al aska.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- May 2, 2002



SENATOR TAYLOR read the following statenents fromthe Avery case:

The plaintiffs claimed State Farm had a nationw de
clainms practice that uniformy specified cheaper non-
CEM crash parts on damage estinmates issued to its
policyhol ders despite the fact that it knew that those
parts were inferior in quality and condition and woul d
not return the damaged vehicle to its pre-loss

condi tion. State Farm deceived its policyholders in
that it failed to inform them of the inferior quality
of specified replacenent parts. It was alleged that
State Farm was able to succeed in this deception by
representing that the inferior parts et hi gh

performance criteria and by offering a bogus guarantee
of replacenment of unsatisfactory non-OEM parts at no
cost to the policyhol der.

The court determned that in each policy, State Farm
made the identical promse to pay for parts of |ike
kind and quality that would restore the vehicle to its
original, pre-loss condition.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented that State Farm had a policy in place of
searching the net for cheaper parts, according to the court
decision. He read further:

Plaintiffs presented evidence in the form of State
Farms own docunments and testinony from past and
current State Farm enployees to show that State Farm
knew that the non-CEM parts were inferior in terns of

fit, quality, function, per f or mance, corrosion
resi stance, appearance and safety. These parts were
represented to policyholders as quality replacenent
parts.

There was al so evidence State Farmi s guarantee, that it
would replace non-OEM parts at no cost to the
unsati sfied policyholders upon denmand, was bogus. | f
the aftermarket part was warranted by the part
manuf acturer, the policyholder was required to contact

the manufacturer for relief. In nost cases these were
part manufacturers | ocated outside the United States in
Taiwan or another country. If the policyhol der

demanded repl acenent of the non-CEM part, a State Farm
adjuster was required to investigate the claimand, if
it was approved, an CEM repl acenent part was installed
but the cost was charged to the policyholder as an
i ndemmi ty paynent.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- May 2, 2002



SENATOR TAYLOR said that all of this discussion about warranty
and the fact that a nunber of |awsuits have been brought agai nst
United States’ manufacturers but not against aftermarket people
rai ses the question of how one would sue sonebody in Taiwan,
which is why the court found that the warranty was bogus. The
trial court also found that “State Farm m srepresented,
conceal ed, suppressed, or omtted material facts concerning the
non- OEM crash parts with the intent that its policyholders rely
upon these deceptions in violation of CFA”

He said that is why he asked about the wunfair settlenent
practices regulations on the books. He asked if CFA is a
regulation or a standard within the industry.

MR LESSMEI ER said he did not know.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented that he couldn’t believe that anyone
could read the unfair settlenment practices admnistrative
regulations in the State of Alaska and the Avery case wthout
comng away with the very strong inpression that throughout the
period of time that the regulation was in place, State Farm had a
policy in place, according to the judgnent of the court, that was
specifically intended to violate that regulation, which is to
conceal , suppress, and onmt material facts. He noted the words
frequently used by the court were “to defraud.” Senator Tayl or
said he did not understand how State Farm could not have been in
violation of unfair settlenent practices because M. Lessneier
said there were sone Al askans involved in the |awsuit.

MR. LESSMEI ER responded that he did not say that, Senator Tayl or
had made that statenent.

SENATOR TAYLOR said M. Lessneier said he did not know how many.
He asked M. Lessneier if he was saying there were no Al askans.

MR. LESSMEI ER said he did not know and was not aware of a single
i nstance where the regulation discussed was violated. He said he
woul d bet that instances of regulation violations, if any, would
be few and far between. He added that it is one thing to quote
from portions from an opinion and take statenents out of context
while it is quite another thing to | ook at both sides of an issue
and understand the case that was tried and is on appeal. He said
the issue before the commttee right nowis what to do in Al aska.
He said it is hard to avoid the concept that what is inmportant is
to preserve fair conpetition and let the D vision of |Insurance do
its job.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he only wanted to know if Al askans were

i nvol ved because the court concluded that State Farnis deceptive
practices were neither specifically authorized nor in conpliance

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- May 2, 2002



with laws in any of the 48 states. He said he did not know
whet her Al aska was excluded but the only states that were
specifically excluded were Tennessee, Arkansas, Illinois and
California. He said he is making the assunption that there nust
have been sone Al askans involved in this suit and that the court
has found violations of a nature that would seemto be violations
of that regulation. He noted that he and M. Lessneier apparently
differ in that interpretation.

MR.  LESSMEI ER thought Senator Taylor msunderstood the Avery
decision. He explained that the Avery decision did not involve
specific claimants. Rather, the aftermarket parts were tried as a
whol e, which is why he was saying one would have to | ook at what
was happening in Al aska to an individual clainmnt.

CHAl RMAN COWDERY asked M. Lessneier if he believes the public
understands the difference between original and aftermarket
parts.

MR. LESSMEIER said it is hard for himto answer that question on
an individual basis but when an estimate is witten, the
aftermarket parts are identified. He noted there is an issue
about consent and about di scl osure. Di scl osure can be
acconpl i shed w thout requiring consent.

TAPE 02-22, SIDE B

MR. LESSMEI ER said that State Farm custoners are told the choice
is theirs. If the custonmer prefers parts other than those
included in the estimtes, the custonmer should notify the
repairer. |If use of other parts increases the repair cost, the
custoner is expected to pay the difference.

CHAI RVAN COADERY said a person has a reasonabl e expectati on when
he or she buys insurance, especially on a new vehicle, that it
wll be repaired with new vehicle parts if danaged.

MR. LESSMEIER said he did not think that is an unreasonable
expectation and that he believes the market works very well right
now. He said he thinks the issue of the warranty is also
inmportant. He said although he cannot speak for the entire
i ndustry, he believes nost nenbers would be willing to work with
the legislature to ensure a warranty as long as the issue of
conpetition is not negatively inpacted. He repeated that the
| osers in the Avery case are the consuners throughout the country
who are not able to take advantage of the increased savings of
using aftermarket parts. One result of the Avery case is that
State Farm was not able to provide dividends over those years. He
acknow edged that it is hard to say those dividends were
exclusively due to the use of aftermarket parts. He said that
State Farm agrees with the commttee on the issue of disclosure

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- May 2, 2002



and woul d have no probl em working out an agreenent on the type of
warranty required.

SENATOR ELTON said he views Section 1 of the CS as a quality
guarantee set by industry and adopted by the state and Section 2
as a consunmer awareness and choice provision. He said he
understands M. Lessneier’s concern that the sentence of page 2,
line 19, does not reflect the current law right now. He said he
is prepared to vote to nove the bill forward, but he would Iike
M. Lessneier to provide a citation to back up that concern. He
then said that given that Section 1 is a quality assurance
provision and that Section 2 gives consuners a choice, he fails
to understand how setting a quality standard set by the original
parts manufacturer is anti-consuner.

MR, LESSMEIER replied that State Farm is not arguing that
provision. It is arguing the timetable for enforceability and
saying that existing |law al ready contai ns a guarant ee.

SENATOR ELTON said if that is the case, this provision would
nerely replicate existing law. He then questioned how one can
argue that Section 2, regarding consuner choice, is anti-
conpetition because one of the basic thresholds of conpetition is
that the consumer be aware of the choices avail able.

MR. LESSMEIER said State Farm is not arguing that consuner
awareness is anti-conpetitive. He said his testinony was that
State Farm supports fully inform ng consuners on this issue.

SENATOR ELTON asked why State Farm views the bill as anti-
conpetitive.

MR. LESSMEIER said there are two issues. First, there is a
difference between fair disclosure and m sl eadi ng disclosure. He
believes the disclosure required by subsection (c) is at best
m sl eading and inaccurate because of the two sentences he
referred to earlier. The second issue is the issue of consent. He
said State Farm coul d not base a prem um structure on the use of
aftermarket parts if consent is involved. State Farm does not
know the nunmber of people who will choose an aftermarket part
when there is no perceived savings; only experience will tell. He
said that during the first hearing on this |legislation

representatives from the aftermarket parts industry had grave
concerns about that, which State Farm shares.

SENATOR ELTON asked how State Farmis prem um structure could be
affected if State Farnis practice is to do what the intent of the
bill does.

MR. LESSMEIER said there is no perceived savings on the
aftermarket part on an individual basis. That only occurs on a

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- May 2, 2002



collective basis. The bill takes away the ability of a conpany to
use aftermarket parts and base its prem um structure on that use.
The consunmer woul d nake the choice to use aftermarket parts when
he or she buys that policy. The consuner can still choose which
part to use for a car repair, but the consuner wll pay the
difference in cost if he or she does not use an aftermarket part.

SENATOR ELTON said he understood M. Lessneier to say in earlier
testimony that this bill wll codify State Farnis existing
practice. He asked if there is anything in this bill that
precludes State Farm from continuing its current practice and
asked M. Lessneier to direct himto that specific |anguage in
the bill.

MR. LESSMEI ER said the default is different. The bill reads (page
2, line 5), “Except with the consent of the notor vehicle owner,
a notor vehicle repair facility may not use an aftermarket crash
part for repair work on a notor vehicle...” He said he interprets
that to nean that State Farm cannot continue with its existing
practice because it could not have a prem um structure based on
the use of aftermarket part with the custoner paying the bal ance
for an CEM part because if the consunmer did not consent to that,
everyone woul d be paying the additional cost of the OEM part.

SENATOR ELTON said he may be missing sonmething in M. Lessneier’s
argunent, but he believes the l|anguage on line 5 does not
preclude State Farmfromtelling consuners they will have to pay
nore if they do not consent to the use of an aftermarket part.

MR. LESSMEI ER said if that were the understanding, State Farm
woul d have fewer problens with CSSB 348( TRA).

SENATOR TAYLOR said M. Lessneier continually used the phrase
“existing practice” when explaining to Senator Elton the
di fference in choice. He asked,

Even following Avery, that’s [State Farmis] existing
practice is that you — if there is an aftermarket part
that cost 40 percent less, that you're still, you're
giving the choice to your custoner and saying we’ll
either replace it with the aftermarket part, which is
40 percent cheaper, or we'll replace it wth the
manuf acturer’s part, which is nore expensive but as our
custoner, you pay the difference. Is that your current
practice?

MR. LESSMEI ER said his understanding of current practice is that
State Farmrarely uses aftermarket parts in Al aska.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if, in the cases in which State Farm does

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- May 2, 2002



use them that is the choice he was explaining to Senator Elton.
MR. LESSMEI ER said that is his understanding.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he realizes the Avery case is on appeal, but
State Farm has obviously changed sone of its practices based on
t hat case.

MR. LESSMEIER replied, “Senator Taylor, | think that you
m sunderstand the issue. The issue here is different than the
issue that was litigated in Avery.”

SENATOR TAYLOR sai d he understands the issue.

MR. LESSMEI ER stated, “I’m not sure you do because | think the
inpression that you're trying to create is that existing practice
for sonething like this is prohibited by Avery and that is not
correct.”

SENATOR TAYLOR said he understands M. Lessneier’s interpretation
but he is not suggesting that it is prohibited by the Avery case.

He said he was just asking if, in fact, where there is an
aftermarket part that is |ess expensive, that the existing
practice is to tell the custonmer that he <can have the

manuf acturer’s part but he nust pay the difference.

MR, LESSMEIER said that is accurate in the context in which he
made that statenent, but he said that statenment needs to be
| ooked at in the conplete context. He offered to provide nenbers
wth a web address that describes State Farms practices. He
st at ed,

What that practice provides is if you authorize repairs
by a repairer that we agree upon using new quality
replacenent parts that we include in our estinmate, and
we pay for those parts, then there is a guarantee. W
tal k about conpetition, we tal k about standards, and we
say the choice is yours. The final choice as to which
parts will actually be used in repairs rests with you,
the vehicle owner. If you prefer parts other than those
included in our estimte, you should notify your
repairer. Should use of those parts increase the repair
cost, you will be expected to pay the difference. And I
will confirm — | wll confirm whether that is the
existing practice although again, in A aska we’re not,
to my know edge, using these parts since Avery. | think
in very rare instances the parts will be used and in
those instances it’s usually a situation of lack of
availability of the CEM And | don’t think that there’'s

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- May 2, 2002



been a problemw th this thing — with the use of these
parts.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented that since Avery, State Farm has
significantly changed its policy regarding aftermarket parts and
their utilization in Al aska. He asked M. Lessneier if that is a
fair statenent.

MR. LESSMEI ER said he did not know when these changes were nade
but he thought they were because there are certain aftermrket
parts that are not being used at all, and those are the parts
that were identified in Avery.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented, “And that’s because of the Avery case
and the possible liability that my flow out of it if you
continued the sane practice you were continuing before.”

MR, LESSMEIER said it is his understanding that it is because of
the Avery deci sion.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if anyone wi shed to testify. [There was no
response. |

SENATOR TAYLOR noved CSSB 348(TRA) from conmittee wth individual
recommendat i ons.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY announced that w thout objection, CSSB 348( TRA)

noved fromconmttee. He then adjourned the neeting at 4:15 p. m
#

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -15- May 2, 2002



